

# Senate Calendar

---

FRIDAY, JANUARY 29, 2010

**SENATE CONVENES AT: 8:30 A.M.**

---

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page No.

### ACTION CALENDAR

#### Third Reading

<b>S. 154</b> An act relating to repealing the sunset on criminal history record check fees.....	44
<b>S. 158</b> An act relating to marriage records .....	44
Senator Sears Amendment.....	44
<b>S. 161</b> An act relating to National Crime Prevention and Privacy Compact ..	44
<b>S. 165</b> An act relating to eliminating the statute of limitations for felonies....	44
<b>S. 173</b> An act relating to technical corrections to the trust laws .....	44

#### Second Reading

##### Favorable with Recommendation of Amendment

<b>S. 196</b> An act relating to processing the application for motor vehicle emergency light permits .....	44
---	----

### NOTICE CALENDAR

<b>S. 187</b> An act relating to municipal financial audits .....	45
<b>S. 218</b> An act relating to voyeurism .....	46

##### Favorable with Proposal of Amendment

<b>H. 534</b> An act relating to fiscal year 2010 budget adjustment .....	48
---	----

##### Committee Bill for Second Reading

<b>S. 278</b> An act relating to the department of banking, insurance, securities, and health care administration.....	52
--	----

### CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS FOR NOTICE

**H.C.R. 220-229** (For text of Resolutions, see Addendum to House Calendar for January 29, 2010)



---

---

**ORDERS OF THE DAY**

---

---

**ACTION CALENDAR**

**Third Reading**

**S. 154.**

An act relating to repealing the sunset on criminal history record check fees.

**S. 158.**

An act relating to marriage records.

**AMENDMENT TO BE OFFERED BY SENATOR SEARS BEFORE  
THIRD READING**

Senator Sears moves to amend the bill in Sec. 1, 18 V.S.A. § 5131(a)(2), in the forms, in the two instances after the words: “confidential information below” by inserting the following words: relating to previous marriages and civil unions

**S. 161.**

An act relating to National Crime Prevention and Privacy Compact.

**S. 165.**

An act relating to eliminating the statute of limitations for felonies.

**S. 173.**

An act relating to technical corrections to the trust laws.

**Second Reading**

**Favorable with Recommendation of Amendment**

**S. 196.**

An act relating to processing the application for motor vehicle emergency light permits.

**Reported favorably with recommendation of amendment by Senator Hartwell for the Committee on Transportation.**

The Committee recommends that the bill be amended by adding a new section to be Sec. 2 to read:

Sec. 2. EFFECTIVE DATE

This act shall take effect on passage.

(Committee vote: 5-0-0)

## NOTICE CALENDAR

### S. 187.

An act relating to municipal financial audits.

#### **Reported favorably with recommendation of amendment by Senator Brock for the Committee on Government Operations.**

The Committee recommends that the bill be amended by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. 24 V.S.A. § 1690 is amended to read:

§ 1690. CERTIFIED OR PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT TO AUDIT TOWN ACCOUNTS; WARNING; FORM

(a) ~~The selectmen~~ legislative body of a city, town, and the trustees of an or incorporated village may, ~~and upon~~ upon its own motion contract with a public accountant, licensed in this state, to perform an annual financial audit of all funds of the town; or upon petition in writing of legal voters equal to five percent of the legal voters of the town or village, the legislative body shall, insert in the warning for any annual ~~town or village~~ meeting, or in the warning for a special ~~town or village~~ meeting, which shall be called upon such petition, an article in substantially the following form:

"To see if the [city, town, or village] will vote to instruct the ~~selectmen or trustees~~ [legislative body] to employ a certified public accountant or public accountant ~~to aid the work of the auditors~~ licensed in this state, to perform an annual financial audit of all funds of the [city, town, or village]."

(b) Audits performed by a public accountant under this section shall be conducted in accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards, including the issuance of a report on internal control over financial reporting that shall be provided to recipients of the financial statements. When there are material weaknesses or significant deficiencies found in the internal control over financial reporting or the auditor's or public accountant's opinion is qualified, adverse, or disclaimed:

(1) the auditor or public accountant shall present the findings or opinion to the legislative body of the town and explain those material weaknesses or significant deficiencies or his or her opinion at a meeting duly warned for the purpose;

(2) after the audit report is delivered to the legislative body of a municipality, the notice for the next meeting of the legislative body shall also notify the voters of the availability of the audit report and the accompanying report on internal control over financial reporting;

(3) the next published annual report of the town shall include a summary of material weaknesses or significant deficiencies found in the internal controls over financial reporting or a statement that the audit report sets forth an opinion that is qualified, adverse, or disclaimed; and

(4) the legislative body shall post the audit report and the accompanying report on internal control over financial reporting on the municipality's website, if the municipality has a website.

(Committee vote: 5-0-0)

### **S. 218.**

An act relating to voyeurism.

**Reported favorably with recommendation of amendment by Senator Campbell for the Committee on Judiciary.**

The Committee recommends that the bill be amended by striking out all after the enacting clause and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Sec. 1. 13 V.S.A. § 2605 is amended to read:

§ 2605. VOYEURISM

(a) As used in this section:

(1) “Bona fide private investigator or bona fide security guard” means an individual lawfully providing services, whether licensed or unlicensed, pursuant to sections 3151 and 3151a of Title 26.

(2) “Female breast” means any portion of the female breast below the top of the areola.

(3) “Circumstances in which a person has a reasonable expectation of privacy” means circumstances in which a reasonable person would believe that his or her intimate areas would not be visible to the public, regardless of whether that person is in a public or private area. This definition includes circumstances in which a person knowingly disrobes in front of another, but does not expect nor give consent for the other person to photograph, film, or record his or her intimate areas.

(4) “Intimate areas” means the naked or undergarment-clad genitals, pubic area, buttocks, or female breast of a person.

(5) “Place where a person has a reasonable expectation of privacy” means:

(A) a place in which a reasonable person would believe that he or she could disrobe in privacy, without his or her undressing being viewed by another; or

(B) a place in which a reasonable person would expect to be safe from unwanted intrusion or surveillance.

(6) “Surveillance” means secret observation of the activities of another person for the purpose of spying upon and invading the privacy of the person.

(7) “View” means the intentional looking upon another person for more than a brief period of time, in other than a casual or cursory manner, with the unaided eye or a device designed or intended to improve visual acuity.

(b) No person shall intentionally view, photograph, film, or record in any format:

(1) the intimate areas of another person without that person’s knowledge and consent while the person being viewed, photographed, filmed, or recorded is in a place where he or she would have a reasonable expectation of privacy; or

(2) the intimate areas of another person without that person’s knowledge and consent and under circumstances in which the person has a reasonable expectation of privacy.

(c) No person shall ~~disseminate~~ display or disclose to a third party any image recorded in violation of subsection (b), (d), or (e) of this section.

(d) No person shall intentionally conduct surveillance or intentionally photograph, film, or record in any format a person without that person’s knowledge and consent while the person being surveilled, photographed, filmed, or recorded is in a place where he or she would have a reasonable expectation of privacy within a home or residence. Bona fide private investigators and bona fide security guards engaged in otherwise lawful activities within the scope of their employment are exempt from this subsection.

(e) No person shall intentionally photograph, film, or record in any format a person without that person’s knowledge and consent while that person is engaged in a sexual act as defined in section 3251 of this title.

(f) This section shall apply to a person who intentionally views, photographs, films, or records the intimate areas of a person as part of a security or theft prevention policy or program at a place of business.

~~(f)~~(g) This section shall not apply to:

(1) a law enforcement officer conducting official law enforcement activities in accordance with state and federal law; or

(2) official activities of the department of corrections, a law enforcement agency, the agency of human services, or a court for security purposes or during the investigation of alleged misconduct by a person in the custody of the department of corrections, a law enforcement agency, the agency of human services, or a court.

~~(g)~~(h) This section is not intended to infringe upon the freedom of the press to gather and disseminate news as guaranteed by the First Amendment to the Constitution of the United States.

~~(h)~~(i) It shall be an affirmative defense to a violation of subsection (b) of this section that the defendant was a bona fide private investigator or bona fide security guard conducting surveillance in the ordinary course of business, and the violation was unintentional and incidental to otherwise legal surveillance. However, an unintentional and incidental violation of subsection (b) of this section shall not be a defense to a violation of subsection (c).

~~(i)~~(j) For a first offense, a person who violates subsection (b) ~~or~~ (d), or (e) of this section shall be imprisoned not more than two years or fined not more than \$1,000.00, or both. For a second or subsequent offense, a person who violates subsection (b) ~~or~~ (d), or (e) of this section shall be imprisoned not more than three years or fined not more than \$5,000.00, or both. A person who violates subsection (c) of this section shall be imprisoned not more than five years or fined not more than \$5,000.00, or both.

(Committee vote: 5-0-0)

### **Favorable with Proposal of Amendment**

#### **H. 534.**

An act relating to fiscal year 2010 budget adjustment.

**Reported favorably with recommendation of proposal of amendment by Senator Bartlett for the Committee on Appropriations.**

The Committee recommends that the Senate propose to the House to amend the bill by as follows:

First: In Sec. 2, in the section title, by striking out the word “heath” and inserting in lieu thereof the word health

Second: In Sec. 60(a), at the end of “21638 Atty Gen Fees-Reimbursements 1,500,000” by adding the word Approx.

Third: In Sec. 71, amending Sec. B.1101(a) of No. 1 of the Acts of the 2009 Special Session, by adding a new subdivision (15) to read as follows:

(15) To the treasurer's office for Benefits For The Survivors Of Emergency Personnel to be used in accordance with the requirements of 20 V.S.A. § 3173. \$70,000

Fourth: After Sec. 71, by adding a new section to be numbered Sec 71a to read as follows:

Sec. 71a. Sec. D.104 of No. 1 of the Acts of the 2009 Special Session is amended to read:

#### Sec. D.104. TRANSFER OF TOBACCO TRUST FUNDS

(a) Notwithstanding 18 V.S.A. § 9502(a)(3) and (4), the actual amount of investment earnings of the tobacco trust fund at the end of fiscal year 2010 and any additional amount necessary to ensure the balance in the tobacco litigation settlement fund at the close of fiscal year 2010 is not negative, shall be transferred from the tobacco trust fund to the tobacco litigation settlement fund in fiscal year 2010.

Fifth: In Sec. 76, amending Sec. 10(b) of No. 2 of the Acts of the 2009 Special Session, by adding a sentence at the end of subsection (b) to read as follows:

The alternate plan may include fund transfers and shall be proportionate in terms of total general funds for the judicial and legislative branches.

Sixth: In Sec. 79, amending Sec. H.1(c) of No. 1 of the Acts of the 2009 Special Session, by striking out the number "15" and inserting in lieu thereof the number 16

Seventh: By striking out Sec. 82 in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof a new Sec. 82 to read as follows:

#### Sec. 82. REALLOCATION OF FUNDS

(a) Of the funds transferred to the municipal and regional planning fund in Sec. 10(a) of No. 178 of the Acts of 2006, \$20,951 shall be available for municipal planning grants in fiscal year 2010. Any additional amounts in the municipal and regional planning fund from the above transfer that are deemed unencumbered through award recapture by the commissioner of finance and management shall be available for municipal planning grants in fiscal year 2010.

(b) Of the funds appropriated in Sec. 219(c) of No. 65 of the Acts of 2007 as amended by Sec. 64 of No. 90 of the Acts of 2008 (DeptID 7110010150), and Sec. 233a(a)(6)(B) of No. 65 of the Acts of 2007 (DeptID 7110890702),



and Sec. 220 of No. 215 of the Acts of 2006 as amended by Sec. 361 of No. 65 of the Acts of 2007 (DeptID 7110010170); any amounts in the above appropriations that are deemed unencumbered through award recapture by the commissioner of finance and management shall be available for municipal planning grants in fiscal year 2010.

Eighth: By striking out Sec. 88 in its entirety and inserting in lieu thereof two new sections to be numbered Sec. 88 and Sec. 88a to read as follows:

Sec. 88. 9 V.S.A. § 2458(b) is amended to read:

(b) In addition to the foregoing, the attorney general or a state's attorney may request and the court is authorized to render any other temporary or permanent relief, or both, as may be in the public interest including, but not limited to:

(1) the imposition of a civil penalty of not more than \$10,000.00 for each violation;

(2) an order for restitution of cash or goods on behalf of a consumer or a class of consumers similarly situated;

(3) an order requiring reimbursement to the state of Vermont for the reasonable value of its services and its expenses in investigating and prosecuting the action;

(4) amounts other than consumer restitution recovered by the attorney general or department of state's attorneys under this chapter, ~~subject to appropriation each fiscal year,~~ but not to exceed amounts annually appropriated, or authorized pursuant to Sec. 167 of Title 3 or Sec. 511 of Title 32, shall be deposited into special funds which shall be available to the attorney general or department of state's attorneys, respectively to offset the costs of providing legal services.

Sec. 88a. 3 V.S.A. § 167 is added to read:

#### § 167. PUBLIC FUNDS INVESTIGATION SPECIAL FUND

There is established a public funds investigation special fund, pursuant to subchapter 5 of chapter 7 of Title 32. At the end of each fiscal year revenue available to the attorney general under 9 V.S.A. § 2458(b)(4) may be used to bring the unencumbered fund balance up to \$100,000.00. Monies in the fund shall be available for expenditure by the attorney general and state's attorneys to pay expenses, as the attorney general and the state auditor shall agree, for independent contractors, including accountants, necessary for investigation and prosecution of embezzlement or other financial crimes in which public funds are alleged to have been misused.

Ninth: After Sec. 95, by adding a new section to be numbered Sec. 95a to read as follows:

Sec. 95a. FIVE PERCENT PAY CUT; STATE'S ATTORNEYS

(a) For the remainder of fiscal year 2010 and for fiscal year 2011, the compensation of all states attorneys shall be reduced by five percent from the rate of compensation which would otherwise be paid under the provisions of 32 V.S.A. § 1183.

Tenth: After Sec. 112, by adding a new section to be numbered Sec. 112a to read as follows:

Sec. 112a. EMERGENCY HOUSING FUNDING

(a) Of the additional funds provided to the General Assistance program in Sec. 32 of this Act, \$400,000 is for emergency housing as follows:

(1) \$150,000 for emergency shelters participating in the Emergency Shelter Grant Program (ESGP) to provide overflow shelter and services, and to be administered by the Office of Economic Opportunity; and

(2) \$250,000 for General Assistance targeted to those individuals and families who do not meet the income and/or sustainability criterion of the Homeless Prevention and Rapid Rehousing Program. These funds may be used for rental assistance, security deposits, first month's rent and emergency housing in motels, to be administered directly by the secretary of human services.

Eleventh: After Sec. 112a, by adding a new section to be numbered Sec. 112b to read as follows:

Sec. 112b. VERMONT STATE HOSPITAL; CANTEEN PLAN

(a) The director of the Vermont State Hospital, in collaboration with staff who provide professional mental health services to patients of the facility, shall develop a plan to be included in the fiscal year 2011 appropriations act to reopen the canteen or commissary on July 1, 2010, which shall be accessible to patients, staff, and visitors to the facility. The plan shall be submitted to the house and senate committees on appropriations and house committee on health care and senate committee on health and welfare on or before March 15, 2010. The plan shall be cost neutral to the general fund, but shall recognize that patients may have limited funds to purchase products.

And by renumbering all of the sections of the bill to be numerically correct (including internal references) and adjusting all of the totals to be arithmetically correct.

(Committee vote: 7-0-0)

(For House amendments, see House Journal for January 21, 2010, page 66.)

### **Committee Bill for Second Reading**

#### **S. 278.**

An act relating to the department of banking, insurance, securities, and health care administration.

By the Committee on Finance.

### **ORDERED TO LIE**

#### **S. 99.**

An act relating to amending the Act 250 criteria relating to traffic, scattered development, and rural growth areas.

**PENDING ACTION:** Third Reading

### **CONFIRMATIONS**

The following appointments will be considered by the Senate, as a group, under suspension of the Rules, as moved by the President *pro tempore*, for confirmation together and without debate, by consent thereby given by the Senate. However, upon request of any senator, any appointment may be singled out and acted upon separately by the Senate, with consideration given to the report of the Committee to which the appointment was referred, and with full debate; and further, all appointments for the positions of Secretaries of Agencies, Commissioners of Departments, Judges, Magistrates, and members of the Public Service Board shall be fully and separately acted upon.

Robert Kelley of Brandon - Member of the Board of Education - By Senator Flory for the Committee on Education. (1/14/10)

### **REPORTS ON FILE**

Pursuant to the provisions of 2 V.S.A. §20(c), one (1) hard copy of the following reports is on file in the office of the Secretary of the Senate. Effective January 2010, pursuant to Act No. 192, Adj. Sess. (2008) §5.005(g) some reports will automatically be sent by electronic copy only and can be found on the State of Vermont webpage.

20. Management of Stormwater Impaired Waters Annual Report. (Agency of Natural Resources, Dept. of Environmental Conservation) (January 2010)

21. Act No. 179 (H.859) of 2008. Relating to increasing substance abuse treatment, vocational training, and transitional housing for offenders in order to reduce recidivism, increase public safety, and reduce corrections costs. (Joint Fiscal Office) (January 2010)

22. Recommendations of Composting Study Committee #2. (Agency of Natural Resources, Department of Environmental Conservation) (January 2010)
23. Mercury Pollution Legislative Report. (January 2010)
24. Children and Family Council for Prevention Programs Annual Report. (January 2010)
25. Invasive Species Report. (Agency of Natural Resources) (January 2010)
26. Vermont Network Against Domestic and Sexual Violence 2009 Annual Report. (January 2010)
27. River Basin Water Quality Management Planning Progress Report for 2009. (Agency of Natural Resources, Dept. of Environmental Conservation, Water Quality Division) (January 2010)
28. Vermont Center for Geographic Information Inc. Annual Report 2010. (January 2010)
29. Oversight and Implementation of the Wastewater System and Potable Water Supply Rules Annual Report. (January 2010)

## **JFO NOTICE**

### **PUBLIC HEARING**

#### **Joint Public Hearing on Fiscal Year 2011 budget on Vermont Interactive Television Appropriations Committees**

**Monday, February 8, 2009, 4:30 - 7:00 p.m.** – The House and Senate Appropriations Committees will hold a joint public hearing on Vermont Interactive Television (V.I.T.) to give Vermonters throughout the state an opportunity to express their views about the state budget for fiscal year 2011. All V.I.T. sites will be available for the hearing: Bennington, Brattleboro, Castleton, Johnson, Lyndonville, Middlebury, Montpelier, Newport, Randolph Center, Rutland, Springfield, St. Albans, Waterbury, White River Junction and Williston. V.I.T.'s web site has an up-to-date location listing, including driving directions, addresses and telephone numbers, <http://www.vitlink.org/>.

For information about the format of this event, interested parties may call the House Appropriations Committee office at 802/828-5767. Requests for interpreters should be made to the office by 12:00 noon on Friday, January 29, 2010.

### **INFORMATION NOTICE**

The following items were recently received by the Joint Fiscal Committee:

**JFO #2425** — \$468,953 grant from the U.S. Department of Agriculture Forest Service to Agriculture, Food and Markets. These funds will be used to support the Agriculture Innovation Center (AIC). AIC provides technical assistance and business development services to agricultural producers engaged in valued-added agriculture. [*JFO received 1/13/10*]

**JFO #2426** — \$35,000 grant from the Vermont Woodlands Association to Forests, Parks and Recreation. These funds will be used to align Vermont's Use Value Appraisal (UVA) Standards and the U.S. Forest Service State & Private Forestry Forest Stewardship Program with the American Tree Farm and the Program for the Endorsement of Forest Certification programs, including updating the UVA database. [*JFO received 1/13/10*]

**JFO #2427** — \$200,000 grant from the U.S. Department of Justice to the Vermont Department of Children and Families. These funds will be used to augment annual grants made to Vermont communities and state partners through the Children and Family Council for Prevention Programs and the Children's Trust Fund. Projects will serve children and their families by focusing on early prevention, education, parenting and positive youth development. [*JFO received 1/13/10*]

**JFO #2428** — \$1,000,000 grant from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services to the Vermont Department of Children and Families. These funds will be used to improve collaboration with VT Coalition of Runaway and Homeless Youth and the N.E. Network for Children, Youth and families to strengthen services to homeless youths and youths who are aging out of Vermont's foster care system. [*JFO received 1/13/10*]